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part of a rule, and it is possible to re-
move that part without affecting the 
remaining portions, the Coast Guard 
may adopt as final those parts of the 
rule on which no adverse comment was 
received. Any part of a rule that is the 
subject of an adverse comment will be 
withdrawn. If the Coast Guard decides 
to proceed with a rulemaking following 
receipt of an adverse comment, a sepa-
rate Notice of Proposed Rulemaking 
(NPRM) will be published unless an ex-
ception to the Administrative Proce-
dure Act requirements for notice and 
comment applies. 

(f) A comment is considered adverse 
if the comment explains why the rule 
would be inappropriate, including a 
challenge to the rule’s underlying 
premise or approach, or would be inef-
fective or unacceptable without a 
change. 

[CGD 94–105, 60 FR 49224, Sept. 22, 1995] 

§ 1.05–60 Negotiated rulemaking. 

(a) The Coast Guard may establish a 
negotiated rulemaking committee 
under the Negotiated Rulemaking Act 
of 1990 and the Federal Advisory Com-
mittee Act (FACA) (5 U.S.C. App. 2) 
when it is in the public interest. 

(b) Generally, the Coast Guard will 
consider negotiated rulemaking when: 

(1) There is a need for a rule; 
(2) There are a limited number of rep-

resentatives for identifiable parties af-
fected by the rule; 

(3) There is a reasonable chance that 
balanced representation can be reached 
in the negotiated rulemaking com-
mittee and that the committee mem-
bers will negotiate in good faith; 

(4) There is a likelihood of a com-
mittee consensus in a fixed time pe-
riod; 

(5) The negotiated rulemaking proc-
ess will not unreasonably delay the 
rule; 

(6) The Coast Guard has resources to 
do negotiated rulemaking; and 

(7) The Coast Guard can use the con-
sensus of the committee in formulating 
the NPRM and final rule. 

Subpart 1.07—Enforcement; Civil 
and Criminal Penalty Proceedings 

AUTHORITY: 14 U.S.C. 633; Sec. 6079(d), Pub. 
L. 100–690, 102 Stat. 4181; 49 CFR 1.46. 

SOURCE: CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 
1978, unless otherwise noted. 

§ 1.07–1 Purpose. 
This part describes procedures for en-

forcement and administration of all 
statutory penalty provisions that the 
Coast Guard is authorized to enforce. 

§ 1.07–5 Definitions. 
(a) The term District Commander, 

when used in this subpart, means the 
District Commander, or any person 
under the District Commander’s com-
mand, delegated to carry out the provi-
sions of § 1.07–10(b). 

(b) The term Hearing Officer means a 
Coast Guard officer or employee who 
has been delegated the authority to as-
sess civil penalties. 

(c) The term issuing officer means any 
qualified Coast Guard commissioned, 
warrant, or petty officer. 

(d) The term Notice of Violation means 
a notification of violation and prelimi-
nary assessment of penalty, given to a 
party, in accordance with § 1.07–11. 

(e) The term party means the person 
alleged to have violated a statute or 
regulation to which a civil penalty ap-
plies and includes an individual or pub-
lic or private corporation, partnership 
or other association, or a governmental 
entity. 

[CGD 93–079, 59 FR 16560, Apr. 7, 1994] 

§ 1.07–10 Reporting and investigation. 
(a) Any person may report an appar-

ent violation of any law, regulation, or 
order that is enforced by the Coast 
Guard to any Coast Guard facility. 
When a report of an apparent violation 
has been received, or when an apparent 
violation has been detected by any 
Coast Guard personnel, the matter is 
investigated or evaluated by Coast 
Guard personnel. Once an apparent vio-
lation has been investigated or evalu-
ated, a report of the investigation may 
be sent to the District Commander or 
other designated official in accordance 
with paragraph (b) of this section or a 
Notice of Violation under § 1.07–11 may 
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be given to the party by an issuing offi-
cer. 

(b) Reports of any investigation con-
ducted by the Coast Guard or received 
from any other agency which indicate 
that a violation may have occurred 
may be forwarded to a District Com-
mander or other designated official for 
further action. This is normally the 
District Commander of the District in 
which the violation is believed to have 
occurred, or the District in which the 
reporting unit or agency is found. The 
report is reviewed to determine if there 
is sufficient evidence to establish a 
prima facie case. If there is insufficient 
evidence, the case is either returned for 
further investigation or closed if fur-
ther action is unwarranted. The case is 
closed in situations in which the inves-
tigation has established that a viola-
tion did not occur, the violator is un-
known, or there is little likelihood of 
discovering additional relevant facts. If 
it is determined that a prima facie case 
does exist, a case file is prepared and 
forwarded to the Hearing Officer, with 
a recommended action. A record of any 
prior violations by the same person or 
entity, is forwarded with the case file. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17554, May 11, 
1987; CGD 93–079, 59 FR 16560, Apr. 7, 1994; 
USCG–2000–7223, 65 FR 40054, June 29, 2000] 

§ 1.07–11 Notice of violation. 

(a) After investigation and evalua-
tion of an alleged violation has been 
completed, an issuing officer may issue 
a Notice of Violation to the party. 

(b) The Notice of Violation will con-
tain the following information: 

(1) The alleged violation and the ap-
plicable law or regulations violated; 

(2) The amount of the maximum pen-
alty that may be assessed for each vio-
lation; 

(3) The amount of proposed penalty 
that appears to be appropriate; 

(4) A statement that payment of the 
proposed penalty within 45 days will 
settle the case; 

(5) The place to which, and the man-
ner in which, payment is to be made; 

(6) A statement that the party may 
decline the Notice of Violation and 
that if the Notice of Violation is de-
clined, the party has the right to a 

hearing prior to a final assessment of a 
penalty by a Hearing Officer. 

(7) A statement that failure to either 
pay the proposed penalty on the Notice 
of Violation or decline the Notice of 
Violation and request a hearing within 
45 days will result in a finding of de-
fault and the Coast Guard will proceed 
with the civil penalty in the amount 
recommended on the Notice of Viola-
tion without processing the violation 
under the procedures described in 33 
CFR 1.07–10(b). 

(c) The Notice of Violation may be 
hand delivered to the party or an em-
ployee of the party, or may be mailed 
to the business address of the party. 

(d) If a party declines the Notice of 
Violation within 45 days, the case file 
will be sent to the District Commander 
for processing under the procedures de-
scribed in 33 CFR 1.07–10(b). 

(e) If a party pays the proposed pen-
alty on the Notice of Violation within 
45 days, a finding of proved will be en-
tered into the case file. 

(f) If within 45 days of receipt a 
party— 

(1) Fails to pay the proposed penalty 
on the Notice of Violation; and 

(2) Fails to decline the Notice of Vio-
lation—the Coast Guard will enter a 
finding of default in the case file and 
proceed with the civil penalty in the 
amount recommended on the Notice of 
Violation without processing the viola-
tion under the procedures described in 
33 CFR 1.07–10(b). 

[CGD 93–079, 59 FR 66482, Dec. 27, 1994, as 
amended by USCG–2001–9175, 67 FR 38388, 
June 4, 2002] 

§ 1.07–15 Hearing Officer. 

(a) The Hearing Officer has no other 
responsibility, direct or supervisory, 
for the investigation of cases referred 
for the assessment of civil penalties. 
The hearing officer may take action on 
a case referred by any District Com-
mander. 

(b) The Hearing Officer decides each 
case on the basis of the evidence before 
him, and must have no prior connec-
tion with the case. The Hearing Officer 
is solely responsible for the decision in 
each case referred to him. 
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(c) The Hearing Officer is authorized 
to administer oaths and issue sub-
poenas necessary to the conduct of a 
hearing, to the extent provided by law. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17554, May 11, 
1987; USCG–2002–12471, 67 FR 41331, June 18, 
2002] 

§ 1.07–20 Initiation of action. 

(a) When a case is received for action, 
the Hearing Officer makes a prelimi-
nary examination of the material sub-
mitted. If, on the basis of the prelimi-
nary examination, the Hearing Officer 
determines that there is insufficient 
evidence to proceed, or that there is 
any other reason which would make 
penalty action inappropriate, the Hear-
ing Officer returns the case to the Dis-
trict Commander with a written state-
ment of the reason. The District Com-
mander may close the case or cause a 
further investigation of the alleged 
violation to be made with a view to-
ward resubmittal of the case to the 
Hearing Officer. 

(b) If on the basis of the preliminary 
examination of the case file, the Hear-
ing Officer determines that a violation 
appears to have been committed, the 
Hearing Officer notifies the party in 
writing of: 

(1) The alleged violation and the ap-
plicable law or regulations; 

(2) The amount of the maximum pen-
alty that may be assessed for each vio-
lation; 

(3) The general nature of the proce-
dure for assessing and collecting the 
penalty; 

(4) The amount of penalty that ap-
pears to be appropriate, based on the 
material then available to the Hearing 
Officer; 

(5) The right to examine all materials 
in the case file and have a copy of all 
written documents provided upon re-
quest; and, 

(6) The fact that the party may de-
mand a hearing prior to any actual as-
sessment of a penalty. 

(c) If at any time it appears that the 
addition of another party to the pro-
ceedings is necessary or desirable, the 
Hearing Officer provides the additional 
party with notice as described above. 

§ 1.07–25 Preliminary matters. 

(a) Within 30 days after receipt of no-
tice of the initiation of the action, as 
described above, the party, or counsel 
for the party, may request a hearing, 
provide any written evidence and argu-
ments in lieu of a hearing, or pay the 
amount specified in the notice as being 
appropriate. A hearing must be re-
quested in writing; the request must 
specify the issues which are in dispute. 
Failure to specify a nonjurisdictional 
issue will preclude its consideration. 

(b) The right to a hearing is waived if 
the party does not submit the request 
to the Hearing Officer within 30 days 
after receiving notice of the alleged 
violation. At the discretion of the 
Hearing Officer, a hearing may be 
granted if the party submits a late re-
quest. 

(c) The Hearing Officer must prompt-
ly schedule all hearings which are re-
quested. The Hearing Officer shall 
grant any delays or continuances 
which may be necessary or desirable in 
the interest of fairly resolving the 
case. 

(d) A party who has requested a hear-
ing may amend the specification of the 
issues in dispute at any time up to 10 
days before the scheduled date of the 
hearing. Issues raised later than 10 
days before the scheduled hearing may 
be presented only at the discretion of 
the Hearing Officer. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 85–001A, 51 FR 19329, May 
29, 1986] 

§ 1.07–30 Disclosure of evidence. 

The alleged violator may, upon re-
quest, receive a free copy of all the 
written evidence in the case file, ex-
cept material that would disclose or 
lead to the disclosure of the identity of 
a confidential informant. Other evi-
dence or material, such as blueprints, 
sound or video tapes, oil samples, and 
photographs may be examined in the 
Hearing Officer’s offices. The Hearing 
Officer may provide for examination or 
testing of evidence at other locations if 
there are adequate safeguards to pre-
vent loss or tampering. 
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§ 1.07–35 Request for confidential 
treatment. 

(a) In addition to information treated 
as confidential under § 1.07–30, a request 
for confidential treatment of a docu-
ment or portion thereof may be made 
by the person supplying the informa-
tion on the basis that the information 
is: 

(1) Confidential financial informa-
tion, trade secrets, or other material 
exempt from disclosure by the Free-
dom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. 552); 

(2) Required to be held in confidence 
by 18 U.S.C. 1905; or 

(3) Otherwise exempt by law from dis-
closure. 

(b) The person desiring confidential 
treatment must submit the request to 
the Hearing Officer in writing and 
state the reasons justifying nondisclo-
sure. Failure to make a timely request 
may result in a document being consid-
ered as nonconfidential and subject to 
release. 

(c) Confidential material is not con-
sidered by the Hearing Officer in reach-
ing a decision unless: 

(1) It has been furnished by a party, 
or 

(2) It has been furnished pursuant to 
a subpoena. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by USCG–2002–12471, 67 FR 41331, 
June 18, 2002] 

§ 1.07–40 Counsel. 

A party has the right to be rep-
resented at all stages of the proceeding 
by counsel. After receiving notification 
that a party is represented by counsel, 
the Hearing Officer directs all further 
communications to that counsel. 

§ 1.07–45 Location of hearings and 
change of venue. 

(a) The hearing is normally held at 
the office of the Hearing Officer. 

(b) The Hearing Officer may transfer 
a case to another Hearing Officer on re-
quest or on the Hearing Officer’s own 
motion. 

(c) A request for change of location of 
a hearing or transfer to another Hear-
ing Officer must be in writing and state 
the reasons why the requested action is 
necessary or desirable. Action on the 

request is at the discretion of the Hear-
ing Officer. 

[CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17554, May 11, 1987] 

§ 1.07–50 Witnesses. 
A party may present the testimony 

of any witness either through a per-
sonal appearance or through a written 
statement. The party may request the 
assistance of the Hearing Officer in ob-
taining the personal appearance of a 
witness. The request must be in writ-
ing and state the reasons why a written 
statement would be inadequate, the 
issue or issues to which the testimony 
would be relevant, and the substance of 
the expected testimony. If the Hearing 
Officer determines that the personal 
appearance of the witness may materi-
ally aid in the decision on the case, the 
Hearing Officer seeks to obtain the wit-
ness’ appearance. Because many stat-
utes prescribing civil penalties do not 
provide subpoena power, there may be 
cases where a witness cannot be re-
quired to attend. In such a case, the 
Hearing Officer may move the hearing 
to the witness’ location, accept a writ-
ten statement, or accept a stipulation 
in lieu of testimony. If none of these 
procedures is practical, the Hearing Of-
ficer shall proceed on the basis of the 
evidence before him. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by USCG–2002–12471, 67 FR 41331, 
June 18, 2002] 

§ 1.07–55 Hearing procedures. 
(a) The Hearing Officer must conduct 

a fair and impartial proceeding in 
which the party is given a full oppor-
tunity to be heard. At the outset of the 
hearing, the Hearing Officer insures 
that the party is aware of the nature of 
the proceeding and of the alleged viola-
tion, and of the provisions of the law or 
regulation allegedly violated. 

(b) The material in the case file per-
tinent to the issues to be determined 
by the Hearing Officer is presented. 
The party has the right to examine, 
and to respond to or rebut, this mate-
rial. The party may offer any facts, 
statements, explanations, documents, 
sworn or unsworn testimony, or other 
exculpatory items which bear on appro-
priate issues, or which may be relevant 
to the size of an appropriate penalty. 

VerDate Nov<24>2008 10:06 Aug 18, 2009 Jkt 217130 PO 00000 Frm 00029 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\217130.XXX 217130cp
ric

e-
se

w
el

l o
n 

D
S

K
D

V
H

8Z
91

P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 C
F

R



20 

33 CFR Ch. I (7–1–09 Edition) § 1.07–60 

The Hearing Officer may require the 
authentication of any written exhibit 
or statement. 

(c) At the close of the party’s presen-
tation of evidence, the Hearing Officer 
may allow the introduction of rebuttal 
evidence. The Hearing Officer may 
allow the party to respond to any such 
evidence submitted. 

(d) In receiving evidence, the Hearing 
Officer is not bound by strict rules of 
evidence. In evaluating the evidence 
presented, the Hearing Officer must 
give due consideration to the reli-
ability and relevance of each item of 
evidence. 

(e) The Hearing Officer may take no-
tice of matters which are subject to a 
high degree of indisputability and are 
commonly known in the community or 
are ascertainable from readily avail-
able sources of known accuracy. Prior 
to taking notice of a matter, the Hear-
ing Officer gives the party an oppor-
tunity to show why notice should not 
be taken. In any case in which notice is 
taken, the Hearing Officer places a 
written statement of the matters as to 
which notice was taken in the record, 
with the basis for such notice, includ-
ing a statement that the party con-
sented to notice being taken or a sum-
mary of the party’s objections. 

(f) After the evidence in the case has 
been presented, the party may present 
argument on the issues in the case. The 
party may also request an opportunity 
to submit a written statement for con-
sideration by the Hearing Officer and 
for further review. The Hearing Officer 
shall allow a reasonable time for sub-
mission of the statement and shall 
specify the date by which it must be re-
ceived. If the statement is not received 
within the time prescribed, or within 
the limits of any extension of time 
granted by the Hearing Officer, the 
Hearing Officer renders his decision in 
the case. 

§ 1.07–60 Records. 

(a) A verbatim transcript will not 
normally be prepared. The Hearing Of-
ficer prepares notes on the material 
and points raised by the party, in suffi-
cient detail to permit a full and fair re-
view and resolution of the case, should 
it be appealed. 

(b) A party may, at its own expense, 
cause a verbatim transcript to be 
made. If a verbatim transcript is made, 
the party shall submit two copies to 
the Hearing Officer not later than the 
time of filing an administrative appeal. 
The Hearing Officer includes them in 
the record. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by USCG–2002–12471, 67 FR 41331, 
June 18, 2002] 

§ 1.07–65 Hearing Officer’s decisions. 

(a) The Hearing Officer issues a writ-
ten decision. Any decision to assess a 
penalty is based upon substantial evi-
dence in the record. If the Hearing Offi-
cer finds that there is not substantial 
evidence in the record establishing the 
alleged violation or some other viola-
tion of which the party had full and 
fair notice, the Hearing Officer shall 
dismiss the case and remand it to the 
District Commander. A dismissal is 
without prejudice to the District Com-
mander’s right to refile the case and 
have it reheard if additional evidence 
is obtained. A dismissal following a re-
hearing is final and with prejudice. 

(b) If the Hearing Officer assesses a 
penalty, the Hearing Officer’s decision 
contains a statement advising the 
party of the right to an administrative 
appeal. The party is advised that fail-
ure to submit an appeal within the pre-
scribed time will bar its consideration 
and that failure to appeal on the basis 
of a particular issue will constitute a 
waiver of that issue in any subsequent 
proceeding. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 85–001A, 51 FR 19329, May 
29, 1986] 

§ 1.07–70 Right to appeal. 
(a) Any appeal from the decision of 

the Hearing Officer must be submitted 
by a party within 30 days from the date 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal 
and any supporting brief must be sub-
mitted to the Hearing Officer. The only 
issues which will be considered on ap-
peal are those issues specified in the 
appeal which were properly raised be-
fore the Hearing Officer and jurisdic-
tional questions. 

(b) The failure to file an appeal with-
in the prescribed time limit results in 
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the action of the Hearing Officer be-
coming the final agency action in the 
case. 

§ 1.07–75 Action on appeals. 
(a) Upon receipt, the Hearing Officer 

provides a copy of the appeal and any 
supporting brief to the District Com-
mander who referred the case. Any 
comments which the District Com-
mander desires to submit must be re-
ceived by the Hearing Officer within 30 
days. The Hearing Officer includes the 
District Commander’s comments, or 
not later than 30 days after receipt of 
the appeal if no comments are sub-
mitted by the District Commander, the 
Hearing Officer forwards all materials 
in the case to the Commandant. 

(b) The Commandant issues a written 
decision in each case and furnishes cop-
ies to the party, the District Com-
mander, and the Hearing Officer, The 
Commandant may affirm, reverse, or 
modify the decision, or remand the 
case for new or additional proceedings. 
In the absence of a remand, the deci-
sion of the Commandant on appeal 
shall be final. In addition to the ac-
tions which may be taken by the Com-
mandant on appeal, the Commandant 
may also remit, mitigate or suspend 
the assessment in whole or in part. 
Upon the taking of remission, mitiga-
tion, or suspension action, the Com-
mandant will inform the party of the 
action and any conditions placed on 
the action. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17555, May 11, 
1987] 

§ 1.07–80 Reopening of hearings. 
(a) At any time prior to final agency 

action in a civil penalty case, a party 
may petition to reopen the hearing on 
the basis of newly discovered evidence. 

(b) Petitions to reopen must be in 
writing describing the newly found evi-
dence and must state why the evidence 
would probably produce a different re-
sult favorable to the petitioner, wheth-
er the evidence was known to the peti-
tioner at the time of the hearing and, 
if not, why the newly found evidence 
could not have been discovered in the 
exercise of due diligence. The party 
must submit the petition to the Hear-
ing Officer. 

(c) The District Commander may file 
comments in opposition to the peti-
tion. If comments are filed, a copy is 
provided the party. 

(d) A petition to reopen is considered 
by the Hearing Officer unless an appeal 
has been filed, in which case the peti-
tion is considered by the Commandant. 

(e) The decision on the petition is de-
cided on the basis of the record, the pe-
tition, and the comments in opposi-
tion, if any. The petition is granted 
only when newly found evidence is de-
scribed which has a direct and material 
bearing on the issues and when a valid 
explanation is provided as to why the 
evidence was not and could not have 
been, in the exercise of due diligence, 
produced at the hearing. The decision 
is rendered in writing. 

(f) Following a denial of a petition to 
reopen, the party is given 30 days to 
file an appeal if one has not already 
been filed, or to amend an appeal which 
has already been filed. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17555, May 11, 
1987] 

§ 1.07–85 Collection of civil penalties. 

(a) Payment of a civil penalty may be 
made by check or postal money order 
payable to the U.S. Coast Guard. 

(b) Within 30 days after receipt of the 
Commandant’s decision on appeal, or 
the Hearing Officer’s decision in a case 
in which no appeal has been filed, the 
party must submit payment of any as-
sessed penalty to the office specified in 
the assessment notice. Failure to make 
timely payment will result in the insti-
tution of appropriate action under the 
Federal Claims Collection Act and the 
regulations issued thereunder. 

(c) When a penalty of not more than 
$200 has been assessed under Chapter 43 
or 123 of Title 46 U.S.C., the matter 
may be referred for collection of the 
penalty directly to the Federal Mag-
istrate of the jurisdiction wherein the 
person liable may be found, for the in-
stitution of collection procedures 
under supervision of the district court, 
if the court has issued an order dele-
gating such authority under section 
636(b) of Title 28, United States Code. 

[CGD 87–008a, 52 FR 17555, May 11, 1987] 
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§ 1.07–90 Criminal penalties. 

(a) Prosecution in the Federal courts 
for violations of those laws or regula-
tions enforced by the Coast Guard 
which provide, upon conviction, for 
punishment by fine or imprisonment is 
a matter finally determined by the De-
partment of Justice. This final deter-
mination consists of deciding whether 
and under what conditions to prosecute 
or to abandon prosecution. 

(b) Except in those cases where the 
approval of the Commandant is re-
quired, the Area, Maintenance & Logis-
tics Command (MLC), and District 
Commanders are authorized to refer 
the case to the U.S. attorney. The 
Commandant’s approval is required in 
the following cases where evidence of a 
criminal offense is disclosed: 

(1) Marine casualties or accidents re-
sulting in death. 

(2) Marine Boards (46 CFR part 4). 
(3) Violations of port security regula-

tions (33 CFR parts 6, 121 to 126 inclu-
sive). 

(c) The Area, MLC, or District Com-
mander will identify the laws or regu-
lations which were violated and make 
specific recommendations concerning 
the proceedings to be instituted by the 
U.S. attorney in every case. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by USCG–2001–9286, 66 FR 33639, 
June 25, 2001] 

§ 1.07–95 Civil and criminal penalties. 

(a) If a violation of law or regulation 
carries both a civil and a criminal pen-
alty, the Area, MLC, and District Com-
manders are authorized to determine 
whether to institute civil penalty pro-
ceedings or to refer the case to the U.S. 
attorney for prosecution in accordance 
with § 1.07–90. 

(b) When the U.S. Attorney declines 
to institute criminal proceedings, the 
Area, MLC, or District Commander de-
cides whether to initiate civil penalty 
proceedings or to close the case. 

[CGD 78–82, 43 FR 54186, Nov. 20, 1978, as 
amended by USCG–2001–9286, 66 FR 33639, 
June 25, 2001] 

§ 1.07–100 Summons in lieu of seizure 
of commercial fishing industry ves-
sels. 

(a) As used in this section, the fol-
lowing terms have the meanings speci-
fied: 

(1) Commercial fishing industry vessel 
means a fishing vessel, a fish proc-
essing vessel, or a fish tender vessel as 
defined in 46 U.S.C. 2101 (11a), (11b), or 
(11c), respectively. 

(2) Personal use quantity means a 
quantity of a controlled substance as 
specified in 19 CFR 171.51. 

(b) When a commercial fishing indus-
try vessel is subject to seizure for a 
violation of 21 U.S.C. 881(a)(4), (6), or 
(7); of 19 U.S.C. 1595a(a); or of 49 U.S.C. 
App. 782 and the violation involves the 
possession of a personal use quantity of 
a controlled substance, the vessel shall 
be issued a summons to appear as pre-
scribed in subpart F of 19 CFR part 171 
in lieu of seizure, provided that the 
vessel is: 

(1) Proceeding to or from a fishing 
area or intermediate port of call; or 

(2) Actively engaged in fishing oper-
ations. 

[CGD 89–003, 54 FR 37615, Sept. 11, 1989] 

Subpart 1.08—Written Warnings by 
Coast Guard Boarding Officers 

AUTHORITY: 14 U.S.C. 633; 49 CFR 1.46(b). 

§ 1.08–1 Applicability. 
(a) The regulations in this subpart 

apply to certain violations of the fol-
lowing statutes and regulations for 
which Coast Guard boarding officers 
are authorized to issue written warn-
ings instead of recommending civil or 
criminal penalty procedures under sub-
part 1.07 of this part: 

(1) 46 CFR 25.05 whistles or other 
sound producing devices; 

(2) 33 CFR part 175, subpart B and 46 
CFR subpart 25.25, Personal Flotation 
Devices. 

(3) 46 CFR 25.35 backfire flame con-
trol; 

(4) 46 CFR 25.40 ventilation; 
(5) 33 CFR part 173 numbering; 
(6) 46 U.S.C. 103, documented yachts; 
(7) 33 CFR part 155 oil pollution pre-

vention; and 
(8) 46 CFR 25.30 fire extinguishers; 
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